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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Guyton, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Guyton, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Manøgement's Responsíbilíty fo r the Financíøl Støtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or enor.

Audítor's Responsibílíty

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financiai statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opínìons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Guyton, Georgia, as of
June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Requir e d Supplementary Inþrmation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
budgetary comparison information on pages 40 and 47, and the Schedule of Changes in the Net
Pension Liability and Related Ratios and the Schedule of Contributions on pages 42 and 43 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by the missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Guyton, Georgia's basic financial statements. The combining
and individual fund statements and schedules and schedule of projects paid with special pqpose
local option sales tax proceeds are presented for the purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.
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The combining and individual fund statements and schedules and schedule of projects paid with
special purpose local option sales tax proceeds are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund
statements and schedules and schedule of projects paid with special pu{pose local option sales tax
proceeds are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Audítíng Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 29,2020 on our consideration of the City of Guyton, Georgia's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Guyton, Georgia's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

á,';/4t At4* 4*¡<-4t

Statesboro, Georgia
September 29,2020
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Støtemenl of Net Posìtion

June 30, 2019

Primary Government

Asse ts

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Accounts
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Interfund
Other

Prepaid items

Restr¡cted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Câpitâl âssets:

Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Other assets:

Net pension asset

Totâl assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension:

Contributions after measurement date

Changes in assumptions

Defened charge on refunding of bonds

Total dcferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenue

Compensated absences payable

Bonds payable

Capital leases payable

Long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable (net of curent portion)
Premium on notes payable (net ofamortization)
Capital Ieases payable (net ofcunent portion)

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension:

Difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments

Difference between expected and actual experience

Changes ofassumptions
Total deferred inflows of rcsourccs

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Public safety

Unrestricted
Total nct position

407 136 407 136

10,t23 407,136 417,259

$ 758,014 $ 865,3 16 $

4l,37 4

(398,r l9)
46,560

7,816

Gove rnmcntal
Activities

Busincss-typc
A.ctivities Total

1,623,330

st,999
58,897

106,660

46,s60

50,523

t,660,567

2,327,414
12,363,239

137,589
18,426,778

4,s91
5,532

10,625

5 8,897

106,660

398,1 19

42,707

1,660,s67

I 99,90 I

1,556,868

I 37,589

4,929,947

4,591
s 5??

2,127,513
I 0,806,37t

ts,496,831

34,830

147,093

316,931

34,855

63,3s0
I,658

99,863

1,399,328
142,677

19s,075
1,211,350

$ 4,s23,276 S

29,739
1,275

108,5 l I

90,000

8,635,000
482,334

9346,942

126,690
4,570

114,796

25,908
2,652

90,000
34,830

8,63s,000
482,334
t47,093

9,663,873

96,9s1
3,29s
6,278

25,908
2,576 76

(84,1 9 1 )
4,557,025

34,855

63,350
I,658

99,863

r,399,328
142,677

195,075
t,127 ,159

$ 9,080,301

0

t,s74,846 4,641,216 6,216,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Charges for
Services and Sales

63,633

City of Guyton, Georgia
St aÍerrrenl of Adivitíes

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Program Revenues
Operating GranÇ

Contributions
and Interest

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
P.¡.".V Gorg!.glt

Governmental
Activities Totâl

(272,t63)
(149,719)

$

Capital Grants
and Contributions

Business-Type
ActivitiesFunctionÆrogram

Primary government

Governmental act¡vities
General govemment

Administration
Other govemmental services

Public safety
Police
Fire

Public works
Streets and lanes

Sanitation
Water and sewer

Pa¡ks and recreation
Interest

Total govertrmentâl activities

Bus¡ness-fype âctivities:
Water and sewer

$ 33s,796 $
149,719

22r,746
t33,287

195,634
171,239

63,91s
13,285

1,284,621

49,280
86,744 $

$ (272,163)
(t49,719\

( l 66,589)
8,486

(46,996)
2s,863

I I 7,550
(8,07e)

(13,28s)
(s04,932)

(1 I 8,690)

(623,622)

111,637
275,910
101,54ó
82,308

573
1,897

44,236
120,844

1,53s
56,413
38,394

835,293

83s,293

Total - primary government g 2,436,622 $

5,877
5s,029

r48,638
197^102

I 17,550
55,836

396,759 s5,029 327,901

1,033.31I

l.430.070 $ ss,029 s 327,901

General revenues
Property taxes
Local option sales tax
Fr¿nchise taxes
Motor vehicle and title ad valorem tax
Real estate transfer tax
Intangible tax
Alcohol taxes
Insurance premium taxes
Investment eamings
Gain on sale ofcapital asets

Miscellaneous
Totel general revenues

Trensfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net posit¡on

Net position beginning ofyear

Net pos¡tion end ofyear

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements.

$ (ló6,589)
8,486

(46,996)
2s,863

I 1 7,550
(8,079)

(13,285)
(s04,e32) $

(s04.932)

nl,637
275,910
1 0 1,546
82,308

573
1,897

44,236
120,844

I,519

173,960

4,349,316

56,413
38,394

7'r8,864 56,429
(99,972) 99,972
678,892 156,401

0 l 8.690)

0 18.690)

16

37,711

4,s19,314

s 4,557,02s $

0

0

$

211,671

8,868.630

7

9.080.301



City of Guyton, Georgia
Bølønce Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

General

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Capital
Projects
Funds -

SPLOST
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted

Restricted
Receivables

Accounts
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Interfund balances

Prepaid items
Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Interfund balances

Unearned revenues

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes

Intergovernmental
Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable - prepaid items

Restricted for:
Capitalprojects
Debt service

Public safety

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

$ 901,986 $ 758,581

72,635
6,987
6,520

$ 758,014

10,625

58,897

34,025

405, I 35

36,187

$ 758,014

1,660,567

10,625

58,897

106,660

412,122

42,707

$ 1,302,883 $ 974,621 $ 772,088 53,049,592

$$ 95,539
2,703

6,987 $

25,908

1,412 $

592

96,951
3,295

14,003

25,908
7,016

131,137 7,016 2,004 140,157

8,633

8,633

7,625 2,004 149,399

36,187

72,410

6,520 42,707

966,996 432,332
142,677

188,555

1,054,516

1,163,1 l3 966,996 770,084 2,900,193

8,633

609 609

609 0 9,242

139,770

1,471,738

142,677

188,555

1 ,054,5 l6

$ 1,302,883 $ 974,621 s 772,088 $ 3,049,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Reconciliøtion of the Governmental Funds BøIønce

Sheet to the Støtement of Net Positìon
June 30,2019

Total governmental fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Property taxes and intergovernmental revenues are deferred in the
governmental funds because they are not available but they are reported

as revenue in the statement of activities:
Property taxes

Intergovemmental

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore not reported in the funds. However, in the

statement of net position the cost of these assets

are capitalized and expensed over their estimated lives through
annual depreciation expense.

Cost of capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation

The deferred outflows ofresources below are not current assets or
financial resources and the deferred inflows resources are not due and

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the

governmental funds. Balances at June 30,2019,are:
Deferred outflows
Deferred inflows

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not reported at the fund
fìnancial reporting level, but is reported at the government-wide
reporting level.

Liabilities, including notes payable and compensated absences, are not due

and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
fund financial reporting level, however are reported at the government-

wide reporting level:
Capital leases payable

Compensated absences

Net pension asset

Net position of governmental activities

$ 3,998,060
(2,241,291)

$ ( 181,923)
(2,576)

137,589

$ 2,900,193

8,633
609

1,756,769

10,123
(99,863)

(6,278)

(46,910)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the frnancial statements.

9

s 4,523,276



City of Guyton, Georgia
Støtement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chønges ín Fund Bølønces

Governmental Fands
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General

Capital
Projects
Funds -

SPLOST

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds
Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Investment income

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Administration
Other govemmental services

Public safety

Police
Fire

Public works
Streets and lanes

Sanitation
Parks and recreation

Leisure services

Historic preservation

Capital Outlays
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues to expenditures

Other financing uses -
Interfund transfers

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances beginning ofyear

Fund balances end ofyear

$ 739,055
63,633

41,123 $

197,102

49,280
1,467

38,018

293,269 $

739,055
63,633

400,659
283,846

49,280
1,519

38,394

$

66,266

86,744

52

376

l,l2g,67g 293,269 153,438 1,576,395

338,492

180,792

203,413

177,807

171,239

22,261
78

14,731

3,534

38,841

86,972

8,453

3,753

338,492

180,792

203,413
86,972

177,807

171,239

22,261
78

38,841

23,184
7,287

1,112,347 38,841 99,178 1,250,366

17,331 254,428 54,260 326,019

(82,088) (17,884) (99,972)

17,331 172,340 36,376 226,047

1,145,782 794,656 733,708 2,674,146

$ 1,163,113 $ 966,996 $ 770,084 S 2,900,193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Reconciliøtíon of the Governmental Fands Støtement of Revenues, Expendítures

and Chønges in Fund Balances to the Statement of Acfiv¡t¡es
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

Howeve¿ in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capitalized capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense

expense in the current period.

Depreciation expense

Capital outlay

Property taxes in the statement of activities that do not provide current
fìnancial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Deferred af. 06/30 /2019
Deferred at0613012018

Intergovemmental revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Deferred at06130/2019
Deferred at0613012018

Interest expense on long-term debt reported in the statement of activities
does not require the use ofcurrent financial resources and therefore is
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Liability at 06130 12019

Liability at 061 30 I 20 l8

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds
but the repayment reduces liabilities in the statement of net position.

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use ofcurrent financial resources and therefore are not reported

as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences at 0613012019

Compensated absences at 06/3 0 l20l I

Net pension asset reported in the statement of activities does not provide/require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported

as expenditures in governmental funds.
Net pension asset

Asset balance af 0613012019

Asset balance at 06130/2018

Defened inflows/outflows of resources from pensions

Balance at 06/3012019

Balance at 0613012018

Change in net position of governmental activities

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ll

s 226,047

$ (r65,007)
79,646 (85,36 l)

$ 8,633
(8,737) (104)

( 18,338) (17 ,729)

(6,278)
280 (5,998)

23,184

s (2,s76)

5,424 2,848

$ 137,589
( I 00,693)

(89,740)
83,917 31,073

609

$ r 73,960



City of Guyton, Georgia
Statemenl of Net Posìtion

Proprietøry Funds
June 30,2019

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Accounts
Other

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred charge on refunding ofbonds

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Accrued interest payable

Interfund balances

Compensated absences

Notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable (net of current portion)

Premium on notes payable (net of amortizafion)
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

\üater and

Sewer

$ 865,316

41,374

46,560

7,816
961,066

2,127,513

10,806,371

12,933,884

13,894,950

407,136

29,739
1,275

108,518

398,1 1 9

76

90,000

627,727

8,635,000

482,334

9,117,334

9,745,067

4,641,216
(84, I 9 l)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

12
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Statement of Revenues,

Expenses ønd Chønges in Net Position
Proprietøty Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Operating revenues

Charges for services

Connection fees

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Professional fees

Utilities
Maintenance - repairs

Supplies
Postage

Chlorine
Insurance

Bad debts

Miscellaneous

Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Gain on sale of timber
Investment earnings
Interest expense and fiscal fees

Total non-operating expenses

Loss before transfers

Interfund transfers
Transfer from SPLOST fund
Transfer from 2015 CDBG fund
Transfer from construction trust fund
Transfer to debt service trust fund
Transfer from debt service trust fund

Total interfund transfers

Change in net position

Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

Ihe accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements.

l3

Water and
Sewer

$ 774,456
173,375

85,480
1,033,3 I I

133,643

12,002
I 50,535

55,097

40,335

33,071
6,942
1,965

19,142

14,934

24,296
342,363

834,125

I 99,1 86

56,413
16

ß17 ,876)
(261,447)

(62,261)

g2,0gg

25

26,759
(405,7s0)

396,850

99,972

37,711

4,519,314

s 4,ss7 ,025



City of Guyton, Georgia
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprìetary Funds
For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2019

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers

Cash payments to employees for personal services

Cash payments for goods and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Interfund balances

Cash flows from capital and
related financing activities

Interfund transfers for capital asset projects

From SPLOST Capital Projects Fund

From 2015 CDBG Fund

From Construction Trust Fund
To Debt Service Trust
From Debt Service Trust

Proceeds from sale of timber
Principal paid on notes

Interest and fiscal fees paid on debt

Payments for capital acquisitions

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment earnings

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents end ofyear

Water and
Sewer

$ 1,099,996
(147,961)
(400,415)

551,620

104,099

g2,0gg

25

26,759
(405,750)

396,850
56,413

(65,000)
(33 1,850)
(127,010)

Net cash used for capital and related fÏnancing activities (367,475)

t6

288,260

577,056

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

t4

$ 865,316



City of Guyton, Georgia
Støtement of Cash Flows

Propríetary Funds
For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2019

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Operating income

Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization

(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable

Other receivable

Prepaid expense

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Compensated absences payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(continued)

Water and
Sewer

$ 199,186

342,363

66,685
(46,560)

347

(8,085)

369
(2,685)

$ 551,620



City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basic Fìnønciøl Statements
For tlte Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summøry of Signíficant Accounting Polìcies

The City of Guyton, Georgia (the City) was incorporated under the provisions of Georgia law in 1887. The

City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized

by its charter: public safety (police and fire), streets and lanes, sanitation, planning and zoning, water and

sewer, and various administrative services.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governments (GAAP). The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and

Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are

discussed below.

Reportíne Entítv
The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government and other organizations that are included to ensure

that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the City consists of all funds,

departments, boards and agencies thal are not legally separate from the City.

The City has no component units and there are no organizations which have been excluded from the reporting
entity.

Basís of Presentatíon
The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

Government-wide Finøncial Støtemenls - The government-wide financial statements include the statement of
net position and the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a

whole. The primary government is presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the
primary government. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities,
generally supported by taxes and grants and the City's general revenues, from business-type activities, generally

financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of
the City at year end.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each

function of the City's governmental activities and for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities of
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and therefore clearly
identifiable to that particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expens€s to functions in the

statement of activities.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Busic FinancíøI Støtements
For tlte Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Sammøry of SìgnìJìcant Accountìng Polícìes (contìnued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include
portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated
with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (l) charges for services which report fees and
other charges to users of the Cify's services; and (2) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition,
construction, or rehabilitation ofcapital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to
these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining factor for
charges for services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the determining
factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of the
City. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the City.

Fund FínanciøI Statemenls - During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund
financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level. Fund
financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds.

Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns on the fund statements.

Fund Accountíng - The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses two categories of funds: governmental
and proprietary.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most governmental functions typically
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances ofcurrent financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be liquidated.
The City reports the difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance. The
following are the City's major governmental funds:

The Generul Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The general fund's fund balance is available to the City for any purpose
provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Georgia.

The SPLOST Capítal Projects Fand - This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of capital projects under the Special Local Option Sales Tax referendum.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Busic Financial Stutements

For tlte Yesr Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summary of Sígnfficant Accounting Polìcies (contínued)

Propríetøry Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in
net position, financial position and cash flows. The proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds. The
following is the City's major enterprise fund:

Water und Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the construction of facilities and operation of
activities involved in providing water and sewer services to City residents.

Measurement Focus
Governtnent-wíde FinanciøI Stutemenls - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the

economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City
are included on the statement of net position. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses.

Fund Financíøl Ststemenls - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally

are included on the balance sheet. The statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports

the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the

government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include

a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide

statements and the governmental fund statements.

Like the govemment-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic

resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the

operation of these funds are included on the statements of net position. The statements of changes in fund net

position present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of
cash flows provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary

activities.

Basís of Accountìng
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the

financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary

funds use the accrual basis ofaccounting at both reporting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified
accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred outflows and inflows
ofresources, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bctsic Finøncial Statements
For tlte Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summary of Sígnìjicønt Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenaes - Exchønge Transactìons - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives

and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the City, the phrase "available for exchange transactions" means expected to be

received within 60 days of year-end.

Revenues - Non-exchqnge Transøctions - Non-exchange transactions in which the City receives value without
directly giving equal value in return, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual

basis, revenue from sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and

donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which speciff the year when the resources are required to be used or
the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to
be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City
on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions also must be

available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual
property taxes, sales taxes, interest and federal and state gfants.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

On both the government-fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements, revenues are

deferred for grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.g., cash advances).

Expenses/Expendítures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are

incurred. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.

Assets. Líøbilìtíes and Fund Equitv

Cøsh, Cash Equivølents - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bøsic Finuncial Stutements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summøry of Signijicant Accounting Polìcies (continued)

Investments - Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Georgia law authorizes the City to invest in the following type of obligations:
o Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states
o Obligations of the United States Government
o Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or Government agency
o Obligations of any corporation of the United States Government
o Prime bankers' acceptances
o The State of Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I)
o Repurchaseagreements
o Obligations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia

Receivøbles - All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles, where

applicable. Unbilled water and sewer charges are accrued as receivables and revenue at June 30, 2019. The
general fund and water and sewer enterprise fund reported an allowance of$2,803 and $14,834, respectively, at

June 30,2019.

Interfund BøIønces - On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short term
interfund loans are classified as "interfund receivables/interfund payables." These amounts are eliminated in
the governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for any net
residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented

as internal balances.

Prepøìd ltems - Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2019, are

recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and

reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed.

CapítøI Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the

proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The City reports

these assets in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but does

not report these assets in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by enterprise funds

are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in
the enterprise funds' statement of net position.

At the inception of capital leases at the governmental fund reporting level, expenditures and an "other financing
source" of an equal amount are reported at the net present value of future minimum lease payments. In the

enterprise fund statements and in the government-wide statements, assets purchased with capital leases are

capitalized as capital assets and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basic FìnsncíøI Støtements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summøry of SigniJîcant Accounting Policies (contìnued)

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historicalcost) and updated for additions and retirements

during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The City
maintains a capitalization threshold of one thousand dollars. The City's infrastructure consists of roads,

bridges, water lines and sewer lines. Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The City has capitalized

only those infrastructure costs incurred in the years subsequent to June 30, 2003. The costs of normal

maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are

expensed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress. Improvements are

depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for infrastructure were

estimated based on the City's historical records of necessary improvements and replacement. Depreciation is

computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Estimated Useful Lives

Asset Class

Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Vehicles
Infrastructure
Water System

Sewer collection system

30-50 Years

5-10 years

5 years

5 years

5-8 years

3-10 years

7-10 Years

5 Years

50 Years

50 Years

Compensated Absences - Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the

employee's rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that

the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

All compensated absence liabilities include salary-related payments, where applicable.

The total compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. The

proprietary fund reports total compensated absence liability at the fund level, if applicable. Governmental

funds report compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level only "when due."

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes îo Busic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summøry of Sígnfficant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accrued Líubílìtìes ønd Long-term Obligøtions - All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations
are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner

and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations ofthese funds. However, compensated

absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements

only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year. Capital leases are recognized as a

liability in the governmental fund financial statements when due.

Debt Premiums, Discounts ønd fssuønce Costs - On the government-wide statement of net position and the
proprietary fund type statement of net position, bond premiums and discounts are netted against bonds payable.

On the government-wide and proprietary fund type statement of activities, bond premiums and discounts are

deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

Bond issuance costs are recognized as an outflow of resources in the reporting period in which they are

incurred.

At the governmental fund reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources

and uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance costs are reported as

expenditures.

Fund Equìty - Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance."

Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as "net position."

Fund Bulance- Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current

liabilities. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a

hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as prepaid items) or are required

to be maintained intact.

Restrictedfundbalance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,

bondholders, and higher levels of government) through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committedfund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its highest level
of decision-making authority (i.e. the City Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used

for any other purposes unless the City takes the same highest level action to remove or change the

constraint.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basic FìnønciøI Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summary of SígníJìcant Accoanting Polícìes (continued)

Assignedfundbalance - amounts the City intends to use for a specifìc purpose. Intent can be expressed by
the City or by an offìcial or body to which the City Council delegates the authority.

Unassignedfund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only
in the general fund.

Fund Balønce FIow Assumptíons - It is the City's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been

used before any ofthe components ofunrestricted fund balance. Fufther, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, it is the City's policy to use fund balance in the

following order: committed, assigned and then unassigned.

Net Posìtìon - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. The net position

component, "net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,

reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. The balance of net position is reported as unrestricted.

Net Posítíon FIow Assamptìons - In order to report net position as a restricted - net position and an

unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the City has

established a flow assumption policy. It is the City's policy to use restricted - net position first before using
unrestricted - net position

Operøtìng Revenues ønd Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from
the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the City, these revenues are charges for services for water and

sewer. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary

activity of the fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defrnition are reported as nonoperating

revenues and expenses.

Contributíons of Cøpítøl - Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside

contributions ofcapital assets, tap in fees to the extent they exceed the cost ofthe connection to the system, or
from grants or outside contributions ofresources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

Interfund Activíty - Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as

expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a

requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other

financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses section in proprietary

funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid

for them are not presented on the financial statements (i.e., they are netted).
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bøsic Finøncìal Stutements

For the Year Ended Jttne 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summøry of Signíftcant Accounting Policies (contìnued)

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are

reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities column are

eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business type activities column are eliminated.

Estimutes - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Comparøtíve Døtø - Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented only for individual funds in

the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and

operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified to be

consistent with the current year's presentation.

Note 2 - Stewørdshíp, Compliønce and Accountabílíty

Budgetarv Informatìon
The City adopts an annual operating budget for the general fund, capital projects fund and the special revenue

fund. The budget resolution reflects the total ofeach department's appropriation in each fund.

The general, capital projects and special revenue fund's budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each

adopted annual operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund. Any change in
total to a fund or departmental appropriation within a fund requires approval of the City Council.

Transfer of budget amounts can occur within departments. All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-

end.

Excess of Exnendítures Over Aporopríatíons

Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2019, in the following departments for the

general fund:

Administration
Other governmental services

Streets and lanes

Sanitation

69,131
16,458
4,939

11,239

The overexpenditures in these areas were funded by underexpenditures in other areas and excess revenues over

amounts budgeted.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basíc Financíul Statements

For the Yeør Ended Jttne 30, 2019

Note 3 - Cøsh nnd Cash Eqaivølents

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the

government's deposits may not be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial

credit risk; however, as of June 30,2019, the government is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Note 4 - Receívøbles

Receivables at June 30, 2019, consisted of taxes, intergovernmental, interest, accounts (billings for user

charges), and other (insurance proceeds and reimbursements for third-party damages to water system).

Receivables and payables are recorded on the City's financial statements to the extent that the amounts are

determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable,

systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and in the case of receivables,

collectibility.

NoteS-ProperfitTøxes

The City Council levies property taxes on or about July 15th of each year. Properfy taxes attach as an

enforceable lien on property as ofJanuary l. Property taxes are usually billed on or about September 15th of
each year and are payable within sixty days. The Effingham County Tax Commissioner bills and collects the

City's property taxes and City property tax revenues at the fund reporting level are recognized when levied to

the extent that they result in current receivables (i.e., collectible in 60 days). For 2018, property taxes were

levied on August 7,2018. Property tax bills were mailed on September 15, 2018, and were due November 15,

2018. The lien date was December 1,2018.

(The remainder of thß page is intentionally left blank.)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bøsìc Fìnsnciøl Statements

For the Year Ended Jttne 30, 2019

Note6-CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2019,was as follows:

Balance

613012018 Additions Deductions

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 199,901

Balance

613012019

Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & fixtures
Office equipment

Infrastructure

799,938

659,837 S

578,520

36,959

92,314
1,716,332

2,460 $

37,154
116,534

23,982
7,550

17,321

$ 199,901

799,938
545,763

591,692

29,409

100,247

Total depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & fixtures
Office equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Governmental activities depreciation expense:

General government

Public safety - police
Public safety - fire
Public works - streets

Parks and recreation
Total governmental activities depreciation expense

25,254

14,778 73t ll0

3,883,900 79,646 165,387 3,798,159

4,083,801 79,646 165,387 3,998,060

324,207

555,606
540,152

31,268

30,196

760,242

22,106
46,165
17,246

2,264
14,230

62,996

116,534

23,982
7,550

17,321

346,313

485,237

533,416
25,992
27,105

823,239

2,241,671 165,007 165,387 2,241,291

$ I ,842, 130 $ (85,361) s 0 s 1,756,769

$ 22,170

13,572

46,315

56,152
26,798

26
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bssic Finøncial Støtements

For tlte Year Ended Jane 30, 2019

Note 6 - Capital Assets (contìnued)

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balance

613012018 Additions Deductions

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights s 2,127,513

Balance

613012019

Depreciable capital assets:

Improvements - not building
Machinery and equipment

Office equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:

Improvements - not building
Machinery and equipment

Office equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Water and sewer capital assets, net

13,838,396 127,010 7,584 13,957,822

13,285,834

540,492
12,070

23,809

103,201

$ 2,127,513

13,309,643

643,693
4,4967,584

15,965,909 127,010 7 ,584 16,085,335

2,431,842
375,701

9.129

305,283
35,526

1,554 7,584

2,737,125
411,227

3,099

2,816,672 342,363 7,584 3,151,451

s 13,149,237 $ (21s,353) $ o s 12,933,884

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basíc Fínancial Statements
For the Year Ended Jane 30, 2019

Note 7 - Interfund Bølances and Transfers

Interfund balances at June 30,2019, consisted of the following:
General fund receivable from SPLOST capital projects fund for general fund deposits
erroneously deposited in SPLOST capital projects fund. $ 7,016

General fund receivable from water and sewer fund for various expenses paid by general

fund s 398,1 19

Fire fund receivable from general fund for revenues received into the general fund but not
remitted to the fire fund before year end. $ 6,987

Interfund transfers forthe year ended June 30,2019, consisted ofthe following.
Transfer from SPLOST Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for qualified water and sewer
capital additions paid for by the SPLOST Fund. $ 82,088

Transfer from 2015 CDBG Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for qualified water and sewer
capital additions paid for by the 2015 CDBG Fund. 25

Transfer from Construction Trust Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for qualified water and
sewer capital additions paid for by the Construction Trust Fund s 26,759

Transfer from the Water and Sewer Fund to the Debt Service Trust Fund to provide funds to
meet debt service requirements. $ 405,750

Transfer from the Debt Service Trust Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund to make debt
service payments due in current year. $ 396,850

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bctsic Financíal Statements

For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2019

Note 8 - Deferred Inflows and Deferued Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the financial statements of the City will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

outflows of resources. This separate element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net

position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow ofresources in the form of
expenditures until that time. Deferred charges on the refunding of bonds are reported in this category in the

proprietary fund statement of net position and the government-wide statement of net position. Additionally, the

differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assuptions related to pensions and the

contributions made to the pension plan after the measurement date qualify for reporting in this category in the

government wide statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements of the City will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources in the form of
revenue until that time. The portion of property taxes and intergovernmental revenues that are not available for

use (not received within 60 days subsequent to year end) are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the

governmental funds balance sheet. This element is not present in the government-wide statement of net

position. The changes in assumptions, the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments

and the difference between expected and actual experience related to pensions are the only items the City has

that qualifo for reporting in this category in the government-wide statement of net position for governmental

activities.

Note 9 - Long-Term LìabíIities

Governmenlal Actìvítìes

General Obligatìon Debt
General obligation debt at June 30, 2019,is comprised of the following.

Cøpital Leases - The City has entered into capital leases for various pieces of property and equipment. These

leases meet the criteria of a capital lease since they transfer benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee at the

end of the lease term. Capital lease payments are reflected as debt service expenditures at the governmental

fund reporting level. Assets recorded under capital leases are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated

useful life ofthe asset. This depreciation is included in depreciation expense recorded in the enterprise funds

and in the government wide statement of activity.

Capital lease payable to Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., in equal annual payments of approximately

512,619 through July, 2022 including interest at 3.l7Yo. This lease was used to purchase a vehicle for the fire

department with a cost of $108,000. The equipment acquired by the lease is included in the governmental

activities general capital assets in the amount of $-0- (cost of 5108,000 less accumulated depreciation of
$108,000). The outstanding balance of the corresponding liabilities is included in the governmental activities

general long-term debt. Annual debt service requirements to amortize this capital lease as of June 30,2079,

follow:
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Note 9 - Long-Term Líøbilítìes (contìnuecl)

Year Principal Interest

City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bøsìc Finuncial Statements
For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2019

Total
2020
2021

2022

2023
Total

$ 10,849

11,267

11,700

12,l5l
s 45,967

1,770 $

1,352

919

468

12,619

12,619

12,619

12,619

$

$ *___1,509_ s __50,476_

Capital lease payable to Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., in equal annual payments of approximately
512,144 through September, 2025 including interest at 4.060/o. This lease was used to purchase a vehicle for the
fire department with a cost of $159,382. The equipment acquired by the lease is included in the governmental
activities general capital assets in the amount of $39,847 (cost of $159,382 less accumulated depreciation of
$119,535). The outstanding balance of the corresponding liabilities is included in the governmental activities
general long-term debt. Annual debt service requirements to amortize this capital lease as of June 30, 2019,
follow:

Year Principal Interest Total
$2020

2021

2022

2023
2024

2025-2026
Total

8,671 $

9,099

9,547
10,017

10,51 1

22,602

3,473 $

3,046
2,597
2,127

1,633

1,696

12,144

12,144

12,144

12,144

12,144
24,288

s 70,446 $ 14,562 S 95,009

Capital lease payable to Georgia Municipal Association in equal annual payments of approximately $18,265
through November 2023 including interest aT3.7lo/o. The purpose of the lease is the purchase of city-wide
financial reporting software and pre-pay the related maintenance contract. The asset acquired by the lease is
included in the governmental activities general capital assets in the amount of $54,790 (cost of $63,595 less

accumulated depreciation of $8,805). The outstanding balance of the corresponding liabilities is included in the
governmental activities general long-term debt. Annual debt service requirements to amortize this capital lease

as of June 30,2019, follow:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020
2021
2022

2023
Total

18,265

18,265

18,265
18,265

$ 15,3 l0 $
16,001

16,723

17,476

$ 65,510 $

2,955 $

2,264

1,542

789
7,550

30
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bøsic Finøncìal Stutements
For the Yeur Ended Jtme 30, 2019

Note 9 - Long-Term Líøbilities (continued)

Business Type Activítìes

Water & Sewer Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, "Series 2011 Bondsrr
Issued on August 25,2011, in the amount of $9,565,000 for the refunding of all outstanding water and sewer
related bonds and the construction of a waste water treatment facility. The bonds have maturity dates ranging
from March 1,2012, to March 1,2041, in varying amounts. Interest is payable atvarying rates ranging from
2.0Yoto 4.8% based on bond maturity. The bonds are secured by direct revenues of the water/sewer system.

Bond refunding -All of the Series 2011 Bonds were advance refunded on February 23,2017, with Series 2017
bonds because ofthe decrease in interest rates.

Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Issued on February 23,2017, in the amount of $8,845,000 for the advance refunding of the remaining Series

2011 bonds. See Note 9 for further information of the refunding of bonds. The bonds have maturity dates

ranging from March l, 2016, through March 1, 2041, in varying amounts. Interest is payable at varying rates

ranging from 2.0Vo to 4.0%o based on bond maturity. The bonds were issued at a premium of $596,870 which,
net of accumulated amortization of $114,536, is reported in the statement of net position at a value of
5482,334. The bonds are secured by direct revenues of the water/sewer system.

As of June 30,2019, debt service requirement to maturity are as follows.

Year Principal Interest Total
2020

2021

2022

2023

2024
2025-2029

2030-2034

203s-2039
2040-2041

Total

$ 90,000 $

90,000
140,000

165,000

230,000

1,72s,000

2,270,000
2,755,000
1,260,000

$ 8,725,000 $ 4,781,650 $ 13,506,650

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.

330,550 $

328,750

326,950
324,150
320,850

7,455,375

7,058,775

567,375

68,875

420,550

418,750

466,950

489, I 50

550,850

3,180,375
3,329,775

3,322,375
1,329,975
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Basìc Finøncial Statements

For the Yeør Ended Jttne 30, 2019

Note 9 - Long-Term Liabílítìes (continueel)

Changes ín Long-term Debt - Changes in the City's long-term obligations consisted of the following for the

year ended June 30,2019:

Outstanding
613012018 Additions Reductions

Outstanding

613012019

Amounts due

in one year

Governmental activities
Capital leases payable

Branch Banking and Trust $

Branch Banking and Trust
Georgia Municipal Assoc.

Compensated absences

Total governmental

activities $

Business-type activities
Water & Sewer Refunding

& Improvement Bonds -

"Series 2017 Bonds"

Compensated absences

Total business-type
activities

210,531 $ 9,729 $ 35,761 S 184,499 $ 37,406

45,967

78,898

80,242

5,424 $

45,967 S

70,446
65,510

2,576

10,849

8,671

15,310

2,576

$

9,729

8,452
14,732

12,577

$

Outstanding

613012018 Additions Reductions

Outstanding
613012019

Amounts due
in one year

$ 8,790,000
2,761 $

s 65,000

7,631
$ 8,725,000 $

76

90,000

764,946

s 8,792,761 s 4,946 s 72,631 S 8,725,076 $ 90,076

The governmental activities notes payable are being financed through future general fund and fire special

revenue expendable available financial sources as they become due. Principal and interest payments related to
the City's water and sewer bonds fund are financed from income derived from the operation of the water and

sewer system.

The compensated absences liability will be paid from the fund from which the employee's salaries are paid.

Generally, the compensated absences liability has been liquidated by the general fund and the water and sewer

fund in the prior year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to Bssíc Financìøl Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 9 - Long-Term Lìøbìlities (confinued)

Total interest incurred (all of which was charged to operations) in the government-wide financial statements

amounted to $ 13,285 for governmental activities and $3 17,876 for business-type activities.

Note 10 - Refunding of Bonds

On February 23,2017, the City issued City of Guyton Vy'ater and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series

2017 , in the amount of $8,845,000, with interest rates ranging between 2.00% and 4.00o/o. The City used the
bonds to advance refund the Series 2011 bonds, with interest rates varying from2.0Yoto 4.80Yo. The City
deposited the net proceeds in an irevocable trust to purchase U.S. government securities to provide for all
future debt service on the aforementioned bond series. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased,

and the City has removed the liability from its accounts. The outstanding principal of the defeased bonds is
$9,050,000 at June 30,2019.

Note 11 - Pensíon

General Informatìon About the Pensíon Plan
PIan Descrìptíon - All full-time city employees are eligible to participate in the Georgia Municipal Employees
Benefit System (GMEBS) which is an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan administered by the
Georgia Municipal Association which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its
participating member employers. Benefit provisions under the plan are established by state statute and an

adoption agreement executed by City Council. The Georgia Municipal Association issues a publicly available
annual report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Georgia
Municipal Employees Benefit System Retirement Trust. That report may be obtained by writing to Georgia
Municipal Association, 201 Pryor Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia,30303.

BeneJìts Provided- GMEBS provides retirement, disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and

beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment.
Members with 5 years of total service are eligible to retire at age 65 and with ten years of total service are

eligible to retire at age 55 with full benefits.

Employees Covered - At June 30, 2079, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the
plan:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

Total 14

4

2

8
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City of Guytono Georgia
Notes to Bøsic Finsncíal Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note l1 - Pension (contínuecl)

Contrìbutíons- The City's employee's participation is noncontributory. The City is subject to minimum
standards of the Public Retirement Systems Standards Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10). Policy set by the
City for contributing the annual pension expense exceeds the minimum requirements. Employer contribution
rates are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following the notice
ofa change in the rate.

The annual minimum contribution is the sum of 1) the normal cost (including administrative expenses), 2) the
closed level dollar amortization ofthe unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a period that ranges from l0 to
30 years based on the funding policy adopted by the GMEBS Board of Trustees, and 3) interest on these

amounts from the valuation date to the date contributions are paid (assumed monthly). The City's contributions
to the plan were $6,121 forthe year ended June 30,2019.

Net Pensíon Liøbilítv
The City's net pension liability (NPL) for the plan is measured as the total pension liability (TPL), less the
pension plan's fiduciary net position (FNP). The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of September
30,2078, using an annual actuarial valuation as of January l, 2019. a summary of principal assumptions and
methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown below.

Valuation date

Measurement date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Discount rate

Inflation rate

Net investment rate of return
Projected salary increase

Cost of living adjustments
Postretirement benefit i ncrease

January 1,2019
September 30, 2018

Entry age normal

Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability
Remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net
effective amortization period of ten years.

Sum ofactuarial value at beginning ofyear and the cash flow
during the year plus the assumed investment return, adjusted
by l0% of the amount that the value exceeds or is less than
the market value at end of year. The actuarial value is

adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20 Yo of market value.
7.50%
2.75%

7.s0%
2.75% plus service based merit increases
Not applicable
Not applicable

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the January 1,2019, valuation
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January l, 2010, through June 30,
2014. Fufther details of the experience study can be obtained by contacting the Georgia Municipal Association.

34
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For the Year Ended Jttne 30' 2019

Note 11 - Pensíon (contìnued)

Díscount Rste - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%o. The discount rate

remained unchanged since the prior measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to determine the

discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates,

actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fìduciary net position was projected to be

available to make all projected benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-

term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to

determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block

method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension

plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to

produce the long-term expected rate ofreturn by weighting the expected future real rates ofreturn by the target

asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return

for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2018, (see

the discussion of the pension plan's investment policy) are summarized in the following table.

Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of ReturnAsset Class

Domestic equity
International equity
Real estate

Global fixed income

Domestic fixed income
Cash

Total

Chanees ín Net Pension Líabilitt)
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the plan are as follows:

Balances as of September30,2017

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Differences between expected and actual experience

s 492,469 $ 593,162 $ (100,693)

6.40%
7.40%
s.t0%
3.03%
1.75o/o

Fiduciary
Net Position

45%
20%
t0%
5%

20%
0%

100%

Total
Pension

Liabilitv

Net Pension

Liability/
(Asset)

11,861

36,788
(15,664)

I 1 ,861
36,788

(15,664)
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Note 11- Pensìon (continaed)

Contributions - employer
Net investment income

Benefit payments

Administrative expense

Net changes

1olo Decrease

(6.s0%)

Total
Pension

Liability
Fiduciary

Net Position

Net Pension

Liabilityl
(Asset)

14,943

58,450
(27,659)

(14,943)
(58,450)

0
3,512

(27,659)
(3 ,512)

5,326 42,222 (36,896)

Balances as of September 3 0, 20 I 8 s _4e7J%_ $__!3¿3!1_ s (137,589)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to changes in the discount rate is as follows:

Current
Discount

Rate (1.50%)
lolo Increase

(8.s0%)

s (89,664) $ (137,589) $ (179,145)

Pensíon Expenses ønd Deferred Outflows/fnflows of Resources Related to Pensíons

For the year ended June 30, 2019,the City recognized negative pension expense of $24,952. At June 30,2019,
the City reported defered outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions as

follows:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments
Total

The remainder of thß page is intentionally left blank.

$ (63,350)

$ 4,591
5,532 (1,658)

(34,855)

$ 10,123 $ (99,863)
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Note 11 - Pension (continaed)

$4,591 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date

will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ended June 30,2020. Amounts reported as

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as

pension expense as follows:

Year ended

June 30:

2020
2021

2022

2023

$ (30,537)
(36,621)
( 18,999)
(8,174)

s (94,331)

Note 12 - Net Investment ín Capìtal Assets

Net investment in capital assets on the government-wide statement of net position as of June 30,2019, are as

follows:

Governmental
Activities

Business

Type
Activities

Cost of capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Book value

Less capital related debt
Total debt
Less bond proceeds held in escrow for sewer system expansion

Net investment in capital assets

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.

s 3,998,060

2,241,291
s 16,085,335

3,151,451

1,756,769 12,933,884

181,923 8,725,000
(432,332)

181,923 8,292,669

s 1,574,846 S 4,641,216
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Notes to Bøsic Finøncial Statements

For tlte Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 13 - Rísk Munagement

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; and

errors or omissions; and workers compensation for which the City carries the following insurance coverages.

The City joined the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA). Insurance coverage and

deductible options for property, casualty and crime under the policy are selected by the City's management

based on the anticipated needs. The City is required to pay all premiums, applicable deductibles and

assessments billed by GIRMA, as well as following loss reduction and prevention procedures established by

GIRMA. GIRMA's responsibility includes paying claims, and representing the city in defense and settlement

of claims. GIRMA's basis for estimating the liabilities for unpaid claims is .'IBNR" established by an actuary.

The City has not compiled a record of claims paid up to the applicable deductible for the prior year or the

current fiscal year. The City is unaware of any claims for which the City is liable (up to the applicable
deductible) which were outstanding and unpaid at June 30, 2019. No provisions have been made in the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, for any estimate of potential unpaid claims.

The City has elected to be a member of the Georgia Municipal Association Workers' Compensation SelÊ

Insurance Fund (the Fund). As a participant in the Fund, the City has no legal obligation to pay its own

workers'compensation claims. The City is required to make an annual contribution to the Fund in an amount

that is determined on the basis of actuarial projections of losses. With payment of the City's annual

contribution, the City has effectively transferred the risk and responsibility for payment of its workers'

compensation claims. However, the enabling statute creating the Fund permits the Fund to levy an assessment

upon its members to make up any deficiency the Fund may have in surplus or reserves. No amount has been

recorded in the financial statements for this contingency as management believes the likelihood for assessment

is remote.

Note 14 - Commìtments ønd Contingencies

Operating leøses - The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments under an operating

lease which has noncancelable lease terms as of June 30,2019.

For the year ended June 30,

2020
2021

$

s 5,720

Lease expense relating to operating leases was 52,640 for 2019

Federal Grønt Audits - The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies or their designee. These audits could result in a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for costs disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience,

the City believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

2,640
440
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Note 15 - Joint Ventures

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the coastal Georgia area, is a
member of the Coastal Regional Commission of Georgia (CRC) and is required to pay annual dues thereto.

Membership in an RDC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which
provides for the organizational structure of the CRC in Georgia. The CRC board membership includes the chief
elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member

govemments are liable for any debts or obligations of a CRC. Separate financial statements may be obtained

from CoastalRegionalCommission of Georgia, l18l Coastal Drive SW, Darien, GA 31305.

Note 16 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through September 29, 2020, which is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued. The COVID-I9 outbreak in the United States has caused

business disruptions through mandated and voluntary closings. The related impact on the City and duration
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Generøl Fund

Schedule of Revenues, ExpendÍtures and
Chønges ín Fund Balance - Badget ønd Actuøl

For the Year Eneled June 30, 2019

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment eamings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Administration
Other governmental services

Public Safety - police
Public works

Streets and lanes

Sanitation

Parks and recreation

Leisure services
Historic preservation

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues to expenditures $

Fund balance beginning ofyear

Fund balance end ofyear

711,700
72,150
58,690

183,600

58,800

7 tl,700
72,150
5 8,690

183,600

58,800

$ 739,055
63,633

41,123

197,102

49,280

1,467

38,01813,400 13,400

1,098,340 1,099,340 l,129,67g

$$$ 27,355
(8,5 I 7)

(17,567)
13,502
(9,520)

1,467

24,6r8
31,338

284,576

210,953
284,286

132,300

160,000

23,350
2,975

287,626

164,334

284,286

172,869

160,000

26,3s0
2,875

356,757

180,792

203,413

177,807

171,239

22,261
78

(69,13 l)
(16,458)

80,873

(4,938)
(11,239)

4,099
2,797

I,098,340 1,098,340 1,112,347 (14,007)

17 ,331 $ 17,3310 $ 0

1,145,782

$ 1,163,1 l3

See the accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Notes to the Requìred Supplementøry Informatíon

Budget îo Actual Comparísons

For the Yeør Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Badgetøry Informatìon

The City adopts an annual operating budget for the general fund, each special revenue fund, and each capital

projects fund.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each

adopted annual operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund.

The City Manager may approve budget transfers within departments. Any changes to a fund total or

departmental appropriation within a fund requires approval of the City Council. During the year, the City
Council approved two budget revisions.

All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

Financial
Statement

Budgetary
Adjustment Budeet

s 338,492 $ 18,265 $ 356,757
General fund

General government - Administration
Debt service

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

(14,731)
(3,534)

0

0

14,731

3,534

s 356,757 $ 0 s 356,757
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Schedule of Changes ¡n the Net Pension Liability and Reløled Ratios

Defrned BeneJit Pension PIan
For the Yeur Ended June 30,2019

Total pcnsion liability
Service cost

Interest

Difference between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income

Benefit payments, including of employee contributions
Administrative expense

Net change in fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
PIan fiduciary net position - ending

Net pension (âsset) liability- ending

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage oftotal pension liability
Covered employee payroll
Net position asset as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

2019 201 8 2017 2016 2015

$ 11,861 $ l3,s5r $ l7,7sl $ 14,276 $ 14,706

36,788 36,222 35,225 38,030 35,985

(1s,664) (2t,062) (19,089) (72,387) (10,8s6)

8,297 (s,80s)
(2'1,6se) (23,829) (t8,22s) (13,e94) (1,302)

s,326 13,179 1s,662 (34,07s) 32,728
492,469 479,290 463,628 497,703 464,975

s __4n_12:_ s _ 4e2A6e_ s _ 4722e9_ $__191,6?!_ $ __4el_103_

s 14,943 $ 2r,0s4 $

58,450 78,366
(27,6se) (23,829)
(3,st2) (3,83s)

42,222 71,756

593,162 52t,406
$ 63s,384 $ 593,162 $

s 31,224 $ 2s,814
4,677 43,717

(13,e94) (1,302)
(2,004) (1,6r8)
19,903 66,61 1

445,244 378,633
s __46tt47_ $ _44t244_

24,327
52,094

(18,22s)
(t,937)
56,259

465,t47
521,406

$ _ll]]t!2l $ _!9q,62Ð $ __EAIq $ ___j1ll2l $ ___l2,1se_

127.64% 120.45% 108.79%

264,482 239,257 259,344
-52.02% -42.09% -16.24%

t0033%
307,296

-0.49%

89.46%
301,617

l't.39%

Changes in assumptions
Amounts reported for the fiscal year ending in 201 7 and later reflect the following changes based on an actuarial study conducted in September 201 7:

The investment retum assumption was decreased fromT .75o/o to'7 .5%o

The infl ation assumption was decreased from 3.25o/o to 2.7 5o/o

Benefit chanses
There were no changes in benefit provisions in the last two fiscal years.

The City implemented GASB 68 for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015. In time, this schedule will present the required ten years ofdata.
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Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to actuarially determined

contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

Cify of Guyton, Georgia
Schedule of Contrìbutíons

DeJìned Benefit Pensìon Pløn
For lhe Yeqr Ended June 30, 2019

2018 2017

'r $ 17,884 S 22,110

* 17,884 ** 22,110 **

*00

* 239,257 259,344

* 7.47o/o 8.53%

Notes to Schedule of Contributions

2016

s 25,067

25,066 **

1

307,296

8.160/o

2015

$ 30,233

32,515 **

(2,282)

301,6t7

10.78%

2019 information will be determined after fiscal year end and will be included in 2020 reporting.

Contributions are recorded based on date of receipt into the GMEBS trust. Minor timing issues in receipt of monthly payments are not
indicative of non-compliance with GMEBS funding policy. A plan is in compliance with the GMEBS funding policy if it pays either

the dollar amount or the percentage ofemployee-covered payroll ofthe actuarially determined contributions.

* ** 201 8 covered payroll is based on data collected as of Septemb er 30,2017 for the 201 8 actuarial valuation.

The City implemented GASB 68 for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015. In time this schedule will present the required ten years of data.

Valuation Date The actuarially determined contribution rate was determined as of January l, 2019, with
an interest adjusûnent to the fiscal year. Contributions in relation to this actuarially
determined contribution rate will be reported for the fiscal year endingJune30,2020.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability
Remaining amortization period N/A
Asset valuation method Sum ofactuarial value at beginning ofyear and the cash flow during the year plus the

assumed investment return, adjusted by 10% of the amount that the value exceeds or is
less than the market value at end ofyear. The actuarial value is adjusted, ifnecessary, to

be within 200á of market value.
Salary increases 2.75%o,plus service based merit increases

Invesûnent rate ofreturn 750Yo
Cost of Living Adjustments 0.00%
Retirement age Retirement rates are adjusted to closely reflect actual experience
Mortality rates

Healthy RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with sex-distinct rates, set forward two
years for males and one year for females

Disabled RP-2000 Disabled Retire Mortality Table with sex-distinct rates

Plan termination basis (all
lives) 1994 Croup Annuity Reserving Unisex Table
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts
Taxes

Intergovernmental

Interfund balances

Prepaid items
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Unearned revenues

Interfund balances

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes

Intergovernmental

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances

Nonspendable - prepaid items

Restricted for capital projects

Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Guyton, Georgia
General Fund

Compørøtive B øløn ce S heet

June 30, 2019 ønd 2018

2019 2018

$ 758,014 $ 775,766

10,625

58,897

34,025
405,135

36,187

99,883

19,288

307,374

22,614

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances

$ 1,302,883 S 1,224,925

$ 95,539 S

2,703
25,908

6,987

31,853
4,069

25,909

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

13l,l37 61,830

8,633 8,737

8,576

8,633 t7,313

139,770 79,143

36,187

72,410
1,054,516
1,163,113 782

$ 1,302,883 $ 1,224,925

22,614
38,384

1,094,794
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Generøl Fund

Comparatíve Støtement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Chønges ín Fund Bulance

For the years ended June 30, 2019 ønd 2018

2019

$

2018

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Investment income

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Administration
. Other governmental services

Public safety - police
Public works

Streets and lanes

Sanitation
Parks and recreation

Leisure services
Historic preservation

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues to expenditures

Other financing sources

Proceeds from capital lease

Proceeds from sale ofcapital assets

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances beginning ofyear

Fund balances end ofyear

739,055 $

63,633
41,123

t97,102
49,280

1,467

38.018

719,315
82,793

84,160

181,707
49,988

2,629

17,220

1,129,678 1,137,712

338,492

180,792
203,413

177,807

171,239

22,261

78

359,989

224,693
233,616

1 56,1 58
153,846

25,627

47

14,731

3,534
1,112,347

17,331 (16,264)

80,242

58,371

0 138,613

l7,331 122,349

1,145,782 1,023,433

1,153,976
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City of Guyton, Georgia
SPLOST Cøpitøl Projects Fund

Comparatíve B alance Sheet

fune 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables - intergovernmental - county
Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Interfund balances

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Intergovernmental - county

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund
balance

974,621 $

$ 7,016 $ 11,643

7,625 11,643

966,996 794,656

s 974,621 $ 806,299

$

$

901,986 S

72,635

758,520
47,779

806,299

0609
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City of Guyton, Georgia
SPLOST Capital Projects Fund

Comparatíve Statement of Revenues, Expendítures and
Chønges in Fund Balance

For tlte yeurs ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

$ 293,269 $ 308,325

Revenues

Intergovernmental - County

Expenditures
Capital Outlays:

General government - administration
Public safety - police
Public works - streets

Parks and recreation - leisure services

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing uses

Interfund transfers

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end ofyear

2,278

21,836

38,841 24,114

254,428 284,211

(82,088) (36,876)

172,340 247,335

794,656 547,321

s 966,996 S 794,656

1,800

9,543
12,720

14,778
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City of Guyton Georgia
Combíning BøIance Sheet

No nmøj or G overn m ental F und s

June 30, 2019

Fire
Construction

Trust
Debt Service

Trust Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Interfund balances

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Total liabilities

Fund Balance
Nonspendable - prepaid items

Restricted for public safety

Restricted for capital projects

Restricted for debt service
Total fund balances

$ 183,572 $

6,987
6,520

432,332 S 142,677 $ 758,581

6,987

6,520

s 197,079 $ 432,332 s _____142,67J_ $ 772,088

$ 1,412
s92

$ 1,412
592

2,004 0 2,004

6,520
I 88,555

s 432,332
s 142,677

195,075 432,332 t42,677 770,084

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 197,079 8 432,332 s 142,677 $ 772,088

0

6,520
188,555

432,332

142,677
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Combining Statement of Revenaes, Expenses ønd Chønges in Fund Balance

No n m aj o r G ove rn m enta I F u nds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues
Intergovemmental revenues

Charges for service
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public Safety
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues

to expenditures

Other fïnancing sources (uses)

Interfund transfer from (to)
water and sewer fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end ofyear

Fire

s 66,266
86,744

86,972

Constrcution
Trust 2015 CDBG

Debt Service
Trust Total

$ 66,266
86,744

52

376

153,438

86,972

8,453

3,753

$ 40 $ t2

0

376

153,386 40$ t2

8,453

3,693
99,1 l I

54,268

60

60 99,1780

0

0

(20) t2 54,260

0 (26,759) (2s) 8,900 ( 17,8 84)

36,376

733,708

_170!!!_

54,268

140,807

$_12!,0ë_ $

(26,779) (2s)

459,lll

432,332 $

8,912

133,765

0 $ 142,677 $

25
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Fire Fund

Compørative Balønce Sheet

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Intergovernmental
Interfund

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Interfund balances

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources - intergovernmental

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

Fund balances

Nonspendable - prepaid items

Restricted for public safety

Total fund balances

2019 2018

$ 183,572 S 141,050

9,762

6,987

6,520 6,444

$ 197,079 s 157,256

$ 1,412 $

s92
4,095

891

1,711

2,004

0

6,687

16,449

9,762

2,004

6,520
188,555

6,444
134,363

195,075 140,807

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance S 197,079 s 157,256
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Fíre Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expendìtares ønd

Changes in Fund Bølsnce - Budget ønd Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(lVíth comparatíve Actual Amountsfor the Yeør Ended June 30, 2018)

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative) 2018

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for service

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public Safety

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

$ 85,1 l8 $ 85,1 18

52,000 52,000
4,000 4,000

141,1 18 141,1 18

s 66,266 $

86,744

376

( 18,852)

34,744
(3,624)

$ 113,490

48,979
735

163,204153,386 12,268

l16,118 116,118 86,972 29,146 126,563

Excess ofrevenues to expenditures $ 0

Fund balance beginning ofyear

Fund balance end ofyear

19,000

141,1 18

19,000

6,000
141,1 1 8

8,453
3,693

99,1 l8

54,268

140,807

$ 195,075

10,547

2,307
42,000

$ 54,268

18,832

5,53 5

150,930

12,274

128,533

$ 140,807

$ 0
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Cash and cash equivalents

Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects

City of Guyton, Georgia
Constructìon Trust Capítal Projects Fund

Compørøtive Balønce Sheet

fune 30,2019 and 2018

Assets

Fund Balance

2019 2018

s 432,332 $ 459,111

s 432,332 $ 459,lll
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Constructíon Trust Capítøl Projects Fund

Comparatíve Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures ønd
Chønges in Fund Balance

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenues

Investment income

Expenditures
Debt Service

Interest and fÌscal charges

Excess (deficit ) ofrevenues to expenditures

Other financing uses

Interfund transfer to Water and Sewer Fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning ofyear

Fund balance end ofyear

2019 2018

s 40s 74

60

(26 .759) (868,965)

(26,779) (868,891)

459,lll 1,328,002

s 432,332 S 459,lll

74(20)
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City of Guytonn Georgia
2015 CDBG Cøpítal Projects Fand

Comparatìve Schedule of Revenues, Expenditares and
Chønges ín Fund Balønce

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Revenues

Intergovernmnetal

Other financing uses

Interfund transfer to water and sewer fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning ofyear

Fund balance end ofyear

s

$

0 s 363,678

(2s) (363,678)

(2s)

25

0

25

25s0
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Cash and cash equivalents

Fund Balance
Restricted for debt service

Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Guyton, Georgia
Debt Servíce Trust Fund

Comparøtive Balønce Sheet

fune 30,2019 ønd 2018

2019 2018

s t42,677 $ _r33J6s

$ 142,677 $ 133,765

Assets
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Debt Service Trust Fund

Comparatíve Schedule of Revenues, ExpendÍtures and
Chønges ìn Fund Balønce

For the years ended June 30, 2019 ønd 2018

Revenues

Investment income

Expenditures

Excess of revenues to expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers from other funds to fund debt service when due

From water and sewer fund
Transfer to water and sewer fund to fund debt service payments

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning ofyear

Fund balance end ofyear

2019 2018

$ t2$ 10

12 10

405,750 456,408
(396,8 s0) ß95,349)

8,900 61,059

8,912 61,069

133,765 72,696

s 142,677 $ 133,765

0 0
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Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted

Receivables:

Accounts
Intergovernmental

Other
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charge on refunding of bonds

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Accrued interest payable

Interfund balances

Compensated absences

Notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable (net of current portion)
Premium on notes payable (net of amortization)

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt

Unrestricted
Total net position

City of Guyton, Georgia
ll/øter and Sewer Fund

Compørative Støtement of Net Positíon
Jane 30, 2019 and 2018

$ 865,316 S 577,056

41,374 105,1 I I
2,949

46,560

7 816 8,163

96r 066 693,278

2019 2018

2,127,513

10,806,371

2,127,513

11,021,724

12,933,884 13,149,237

13,894,950 13,842,515

407 136

29,739

1,275

108,518

398,1 l9
76

90,000

432,567

37,824
906

109,327

294,020

2,761

65,000

627 727

8,635,000

482,334

509,838

8,725,000
520,930

9,117,334 9,245,930

9,745,061 9,755,769

4,641,216
(84, l9 I )

4,918,349
(299,034)
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Wøter and Sewer Fund

Co mparatíve S tatem e nt of Revenues,

Expenses ønd Changes in Net Position
For the years ended June 30, 2019 ønd 2018

$

2019 2018
Operating revenues

Charges for services

Connection fees

Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Professional fees

Utilities
Sewerage treatment

Maintenance - repairs

Supplies

Postage

Chlorine
Insurance

Bad debts

Other
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Gain on sale of timber
Investment earnings

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Interfund transfers
Transfer from SPLOST fund
Transfer from 2015 CDBG fund
Transfer from construction trust fund
Transfer from debt service reserve trust fund
Transfer to debt service fund (to provide debt service funding)
Transfer from debt service fund (debt seryice payments)

Total interfund transfers

Change in net position

Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

774,456 $

173,375

85,480

802,609
361,825
121,848

1,033,3 I 1 7,286,282

133,643

12,002
150,535

55,097

124,529

10,073

72,091
47,786
85,974

35,930

40,024
7,309
3,415

14,396

30,949
263,539

40,335

33,071
6,942
1,865

19,142
14,834
24,296

342,363
834,125 736,014

199,186 550,268

56,413
t6

(317,876)
9

(261,447) (278,200)

(62,261) 272,068

82,088

25

26,759

(405,750)

396,850

36,976
363,678
868,965

2

(456,408)

395,349
1,208,46299,972

37,711

4,519,374

1,480,530

3,038,794
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Cìty of Guyton, Georgiø
Schedule of Projects Paíd with

Specíøl Purpose Local Optìon Søles Tøx Proceeds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Original
Estimated

Cost

Revised
Estimated

Cost
Prior
Years

Current
Year Total

Percentage

Complete
2006 Effingham County SPLOST

Streets

Recreation

Water and sewerage
Total

Funds remaining at June 30,2019

2012 Effingham County SPLOST
Roads, streets and bridges

Public safety

Recreation

Water and sewer
Total

Funds remaining at June 30,2019

$ 488,000 $ 383,000 $ 340,468

244,000 128,751 74,669

488,000 500,758 500,758

$ 1,220,000 $ 1,012,509 $ 915,895 $ 25p3S

s _lLéls_

$ 513,864 $ 513,864
26,352 26,352 $ 12,378 s 7,616 s 19,994

250,344 250,344

527,040 527,040 326,293 77 ,438 403,731

$_l,l_1_1É99_ $Mz,69r $ 3!!fZ!_ $ Eq1_ 5_423J2s_

$ {1fÉ¡_

$ 10,260

74,778
$ 350,728

89,447

500,758

$ 940,933

91.57o/o

69.47%

100.00%

0.00%
7 5.87o/o

0.00%
76.60%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%
9.61%
0.00%

2017 Effingham County SPLOST
Streets and lanes

Public safety

Recreation

Technology
Water and sewer

Total

Funds remaining at June 30,2019

$ 676,800 $ 676,800
676,800 676,800
1 12,800 I 12,800

112,800 112,800 $ 10,837 $ 10,837

676,800 676,800
s 2256,000_ $ _2,256,000_ $ _g $ _19.911 $ _l_9,837_

s -s90Js7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Guyton, Georgia

V/e have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Guyton, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and

the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Guyton, Georgia's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 29,2020,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit ofthe financial statements, we considered the City of Guyton,
Georgia's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Guyton, Georgia's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Guyton, Georgia's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identiff all defrciencies in internal control that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be

material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. V/e consider the deficiencies described as 2019-1 through 2019-3 in
the accompany schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses.
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A significant deficiency is a deflrciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance. We consider the deficiency described as 2019-4 in the accompany schedule of
findings and responses to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Guyton, Georgia's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

City of Guyton, Georgia's Response to Findings

City of Guyton, Georgia's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. City of Guyton, Georgia's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integralpart of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

á;a, A4¿-/n+<-bt
Statesboro, Georgia
September 29,2020
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City of Guyton, Georgia
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2019-l Lack of segregation of duties (Repeat Finding 2018-01)

Condition: There is a lack of segregation of duties in various areas of duties performed
by the utility clerk, city clerk and receptionist.

Context: Intemal control procedures should be in place to ensure there is a proper
segregation of duties surrounding collecting cash, recording receipts and disbursements,
authorizing disbursements, authorizing adjustments to accounts and reconciling
accounts.

Effect: This condition could lead to inappropriate transactions and the risk of potential
fraud or theft.

2019-2

Cause: The utility clerk, receptionist, and city clerk each perform conflicting duties, the
general descriptions of which are physical access, transaction recording, transaction
approval, and reconciliation.

Recommendation: Establish procedures to segregate the duties of receiving cash,

disbursing cash, recording cash, authorizing cash transactions, reconciling cash, and

approving adjustments to customer accounts. Segregate duties in such away that no
one person performs any two of the following functions: l) collects or has access to
cash, (2) records receipts and disbursements, (3) authorizes disbursements, (4)
authorizes and records customer account adjustments, and (5) reconciles accounts.

Management response: The City will consistently strive to mitigate the effects of a lack
of segregation of duties. The City has hired a new City Manager who is establishing
procedures and job descriptions to mitigate this finding where possible. Vy'e continue to
evaluate the cost and benefit of additional personnel.

Bank statement reconciliations (Repeat Finding 2018-02)

Conditíon: The City's bank accounts were not consistently reconciled in a timely
manner throughout the year.

Context: Bank statements should be reconciled to ensure proper recording.

Effect: Incomplete bank reconciliations result in increased risk that financial activity
recorded is incomplete and inaccurate and could result in material misstatements in the
financial statements.
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Cause: A lack of time was devoted to bank reconciliation procedures. This appears to

be primarily related to additional work added to responsibilities of bank reconciliation

personnel in the wake of personnel changes.

Recommendation: Design and implement controls to ensure that all bank statements

are consistently reconciled in a timely manner.

Management response: Management agrees with this finding. Management has

established procedures to more effectively allocate tasks among staff to allow for

suffrcient time for appropriate bank reconciliation procedures and to require the timely
review of bank reconciliations by the Mayor or City Manager and documentation of
such review.

2019-3 Misclassification of transactions (Repeat Finding 2018-03)

Condition: Prior to audit detection, there were several misclassifications of transactions

among various general ledger accounts totaling to a material amount in various funds.

Context: Internal control procedures should be sufficiently designed and implemented to

ensure that general ledger transactions are classified properly and that misclassifications

are detected and corrected in a timely manner.

Effict: This condition could lead to amaterial misstatement of the financial statements

and to theft or other fraud.

Cause: Incorrect general ledger coding and insufficient management review of general

ledger activity.

Recommendation: Establish procedures to ensure that transactions are recorded

correctly, and that management review is conducted in a thorough and timely manner to

detect and correct account misclassifications.

Management response: Management agrees with finding and will reassess intemal

control procedures to ensure that transactions are properly recorded, and that

management performs routine periodic review of the trial balance and general ledger

activity to detect and correct account misclassifications.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

2019-4 Reconciling grant revenues to underlying agreement (Repeat Finding 2018-4)

Condition: The City does not determine whether the amounts received under grant

contracts are correct.

Context: All receipts should be examined to ensure that the correct amount was

received.
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Effect: Potential to receive an amount different than that provided for under the grant

contract and misstate the financial statements.

Cause: Staff have not taken adequate measures to examine, recalculate, or research the

underlying calculations (per the grant agreements) of the amounts received under the

agreements.

Recommendation: Design and implement controls to ensure that all amounts received

pursuant to provisions of grant contracts are in accordance with the underlying contract.

Management response: Management agrees with this finding. Procedures have been

established to ensure that all amounts received pursuant to provisions of grant contracts

are in accordance with the underlying contract.
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